
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN 

MILWAUKEE DIVISION 
 

KIMBERLY MORGAN, Individually and on 
Behalf of All Others Similarly Situated, 
 
  Plaintiff, 
 vs. 
 
VIRTUOSO SOURCING GROUP, LLC, and 
PENDRICK CAPITAL PARTNERS, LLC, 
 
  Defendants. 

)
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
)

Case No.: 16-cv-1461 
 
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT  
 
 
 
Jury Trial Demanded 

 
INTRODUCTION 

1. This class action seeks redress for collection practices that violate the Fair Debt 

Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1692 et seq. (the “FDCPA”). 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

2. The court has jurisdiction to grant the relief sought by the Plaintiff pursuant to 15 

U.S.C. § 1692k and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1337. Venue in this District is proper in that 

Defendant directed its collection efforts into the District. 

PARTIES 

3. Plaintiff Kimberly Morgan is an individual who resides in the Eastern District of 

Wisconsin (Milwaukee County). 

4. Plaintiff is a “consumer” as defined in the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(3), in that 

Defendant sought to collect from her a debt allegedly incurred for personal, family or household 

purposes. 

5. Defendant Virtuoso Sourcing Group, LLC (“Virtuoso”) is a foreign limited 

liability company with its principal place of business located at 4500 Cherry Creek Drive South, 

Suite 300, Glendale, CO 80246. 
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6. Virtuoso is engaged in the business of a collection agency, using the mails and 

telephone to collect consumer debts originally owed to others. 

7. Virtuoso is engaged in the business of collecting debts owed to others and 

incurred for personal, family or household purposes. Virtuoso is a debt collector as defined in 15 

U.S.C. § 1692a.  

8. Defendant Pendrick Capital Partners, LLC (“Pendrick”) is a foreign limited 

liability company with its principal place of business located at 1714 Hollinwood Drive, 

Alexandria, VA 22307. 

9. Pendrick is engaged in the business of a collection agency, in that it purchases and 

receives assignment of consumer debts that are in default at the time Pendrick acquires them. 

Virtuoso uses the mails and telephone to collect consumer debts originally owed to others and 

currently held by Pendrick. Pendrick, directly or indirectly, is a debt collector under this 

arrangement. 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(6); Schlosser v. Fairbanks Capital Corp., 323 F.3d 534, 536 

(7th Cir. 2003). 

10. The FDCPA treats assignees as debt collectors if the debt sought to be collected 

was in default when acquired by the assignee, and as creditors if it was not. 15 U.S.C. § 

1692a(6)(F)(iii); Schlosser, 323 F.3d at 536, citing Bailey v. Sec. Nat'l Serving Corp., 154 F.3d 

384, 387 (7th Cir. 1998); Whitaker v. Ameritech Corp., 129 F.3d 952, 958 (7th Cir. 1998); 

Pollice v. Nat'l Tax Funding, L.P., 225 F.3d 379, 403-04 (3d Cir. 2000); Wadlington v. Credit 

Acceptance Corp., 76 F.3d 103, 106-07 (6th Cir. 1996); Perry v. Stewart Title Co., 756 F.2d 

1197, 1208 (5th Cir. 1985). 

11. A company meeting the definition of a “debt collector” under the FDCPA (here, 

Pendrick) is vicariously liable for the actions of a second company collecting debts on its behalf 

as a matter of law. Janetos v. Fulton Friedman & Gullace, LLP, 825 F.3d 317, 325-26 (7th Cir. 
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2016) (assignees who are “debt collectors” are responsible for the actions of those collecting on 

their behalf); citing Pollice, 225 F.3d at 404-05. 

12. Pendrick, directly or indirectly, is a debt collector under the above arrangement 

and is jointly responsible for Virtuoso’s and NCC's actions. 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(6); Janetos, 825 

F.3d at 325-26. 
FACTS 

Nationwide Credit Corporation Letter 

13. Plaintiff Kimberly Morgan entered into a consumer transaction with Infinity 

Healthcare Phys, S.C. ("IHP") for personal medical services. The alleged debt was thus incurred 

for personal, family or household purposes. 

14. Prior to April 10, 2015, Plaintiff's account with IHP went into default. 

15. Prior to April 10, 2015, and after Plaintiff's account with IHP was in default, IHP 

sold or otherwise assigned the ownership rights to Plaintiff’s account to Pendrick. 

16. On or about April 10, 2015 a debt collector, Nationwide Credit Corporation 

(“NCC”), mailed a debt collection letter to Plaintiff regarding an alleged debt, allegedly owed to 

Pendrick and originally owed to Infinity Healthcare Phys, S.C. ("IHP"). A copy of this letter is 

attached to this complaint as Exhibit A. 

17. Upon information and belief, Exhibit A is a form letter, generated by computer, 

and with the information specific to Plaintiff inserted by computer. 

18. Upon information and belief, Exhibit A is a form debt collection letter used by 

NCC to attempt to collect alleged debts. 

19. Upon information and belief, Exhibit A is the first written communication that 

NCC sent to Plaintiff regarding the alleged debt to which Exhibit A refers. 

20. Exhibit A contains the following text: 
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21. The above language in Exhibit A is the debt validation notice that the FDCPA 

requires to be included with the initial written communication to the consumer. 15 U.S.C. § 

1692g. 

22. Exhibit A also contains the following statement: 
 

 

Virtuoso Letter 

23. On or about November 3, 2015, Virtuoso mailed a debt collection letter to 

Plaintiff regarding the same alleged debt referenced in Exhibit A, allegedly owed to Pendrick 

and originally owed to Infinity Healthcare Phys, S.C. ("IHP"). A copy of this letter is attached to 

this complaint as Exhibit B. 

24. Both Exhibits A and B sought to collect the same account and the same amount - 

$337.00. 

25. Upon information and belief, Exhibit B is a form letter, generated by computer, 

and with the information specific to Plaintiff inserted by computer. 

26. Upon information and belief, Exhibit B is a form debt collection letter used by 

Virtuoso to attempt to collect alleged debts. 

27. Upon information and belief, Exhibit B is the first written communication that 

Virtuoso sent to Plaintiff regarding the alleged debt to which Exhibit B refers. 

28. Exhibit B contains the following text: 
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29. The above language in Exhibit B is the debt validation notice that the FDCPA 

requires to be included with the initial written communication to the consumer. 15 U.S.C. § 

1692g. 

30. Exhibit B also contains the following statement: 

 

31. Plaintiff, thus, has forty days from receipt of Exhibit B to pay the allegedly 

overdue account or face being reported to the "three national credit reporting agencies." (Exhibit 

B). 

FDCPA Violations 

32. Exhibit B is confusing to the unsophisticated consumer because it demands a 

payment within the validation period or shortly thereafter, but does not explain how the 

validation notice and payment “deadline” fit together. Bartlett v. Heibl, 128 F.3d 497, 500 (7th 

Cir. 1997) (“In the typical case, the letter both demands payment within thirty days and explains 

the consumer's right to demand verification within thirty days. These rights are not inconsistent, 

but by failing to explain how they fit together the letter confuses.”). 

33. The unsophisticated consumer would have no idea how to both seek verification 

of the debt and avoid being reported to the three national credit bureaus in Exhibit B. 

34. Nothing in Exhibit B explains to the unsophisticated consumer whether 

submitting a written dispute to Virtuoso would prevent reporting, or that Virtuoso would have to 

report the alleged debt as disputed. 
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35. It is likely that the forty day deadline to pay to avoid being reported would expire 

before the debt collector provides verification. The consumer would be left with little or no time 

to review the verification and determine whether the debt is legitimate and actually theirs before 

paying Virtuoso/NCC.  

36. The effect of the credit bureau reporting threat is to discourage or prevent 

consumers from exercising their validation rights.  

37. The Seventh Circuit has established “safe harbor” language regarding apparent 

conflicts between validation rights and demands for payment in collection letters. Bartlett, 128 

F.3d 497, 501-02 (7th Cir. 1997).  

38. Virtuoso did not use the safe harbor language in Exhibit B, or any equivalent or 

similar language. 

39. Further, both NCC’s and Virtuoso’s letters threatened to report Plaintiff’s alleged 

debt to credit bureaus. Exhibits A, B. 

40. The unsophisticated consumer would be confused about how Pendrick and 

Virtuoso could report the same account to consumer reporting agencies twice. Even the 

unsophisticated consumer knows that a reported collection account is a negative item in the 

consumer’s credit file. 

41. Pendrick, who purchased the Plaintiff’s and class members’ alleged debts after 

those debts were in default, is vicariously liable for Virtuoso’s actions in collecting debts on its 

behalf as a matter of law. Janetos, 825 F.3d at 325 (“we think it is fair and consistent with the 

Act to require a debt collector who is independently obliged to comply with the Act to monitor 

the actions of those it enlists to collect debts on its behalf.”). 

42. 15 U.S.C. § 1692g(b) states, in part: 
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(b) Disputed debts  
… 
Any collection activities and communication during the 30-day period may not 
overshadow or be inconsistent with the disclosure of the consumer’s right to 
dispute the debt or request the name and address of the original creditor. 
 

43. 15 U.S.C. § 1692e provides, in relevant part: “A debt collector may not use any 

false, deceptive, or misleading representation or means in connection with the collection of any 

debt.” 

44. 15 U.S.C. § 1692e(10) prohibits: “The use of any false representation or deceptive 

means to collect or attempt to collect any debt or to obtain information concerning a consumer. 

45. Plaintiff was confused by Exhibit B. 

46. The unsophisticated consumer would be confused by Exhibit B. 

47.  Plaintiff had to spend time and money investigating Exhibit B. 

48. Plaintiff had to take time to obtain and meet with counsel, including traveling to 

counsel’s office by car and its related expenses, including but not limited to the cost of gasoline 

and mileage, to advise Plaintiff on the consequences of Exhibit B. 

49. The FDCPA creates substantive rights for consumers; violations cause injury to 

consumers, and such injuries are concrete and particularized. Quinn v. Specialized Loan 

Servicing, LLC, No. 16 C 2021, 2016 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 107299 *8-13 (N.D. Ill. Aug. 11, 2016) 

(rejecting challenge to Plaintiff’s standing based upon alleged FDCPA statutory violation); Lane 

v. Bayview Loan Servicing, LLC, No. 15 C 10446, 2016 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 89258 *9-10 (N.D. Ill. 

July 11, 2016) (“When a federal statute is violated, and especially when Congress has created a 

cause of action for its violation, by definition Congress has created a legally protected interest 

that it deems important enough for a lawsuit.”); Church v. Accretive Health, Inc., No. 15-15708, 

2016 U.S. App. LEXIS 12414 *7-11 (11th Cir. July 6, 2016) (same); see also Mogg v. Jacobs, 
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No. 15-CV-1142-JPG-DGW, 2016 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 33229, 2016 WL 1029396, at *5 (S.D. Ill. 

Mar. 15, 2016) (“Congress does have the power to enact statutes creating legal rights, the 

invasion of which creates standing, even though no injury would exist without the statute,” 

(quoting Sterk v. Redbox Automated Retail, LLC, 770 F.3d 618, 623 (7th Cir. 2014)). For this 

reason, and to encourage consumers to bring FDCPA actions, Congress authorized an award of 

statutory damages for violations. 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(a). 

50. Moreover, Congress has explicitly described the FDCPA as regulating “abusive 

practices” in debt collection. 15 U.S.C. §§ 1692(a) – 1692(e). Any person who receives a debt 

collection letter containing a violation of the FDCPA is a victim of abusive practices. See 15 

U.S.C. §§ 1692(e) (“It is the purpose of this subchapter to eliminate abusive debt collection 

practices by debt collectors, to insure that those debt collectors who refrain from using abusive 

debt collection practices are not competitively disadvantaged, and to promote consistent State 

action to protect consumers against debt collection abuses”). 

COUNT I  – FDCPA 

51. Plaintiff incorporates by reference as if fully set forth herein the allegations 

contained in the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint. 

52. The statement on Exhibit B that Plaintiff can avoid being reported to the three 

national credit bureaus only in Plaintiff pays within forty days conflicts with and overshadows 

the debt validation notice, in that it demands a payment within the validation period or shortly 

thereafter, but does not explain how the validation notice and settlement “deadline” fit together. 

15 U.S.C. § 1692g; Bartlett, 128 F.3d at 500. 

53. Exhibit B is confusing, deceptive, and/or misleading to the unsophisticated 

consumer. 

Case 2:16-cv-01461-LA   Filed 11/01/16   Page 8 of 11   Document 1



 
 
9 

54. Defendants violated 15 U.S.C. §§ 1692e, 1692e(10) and 1692g. 

COUNT II -- FDCPA 

55. Plaintiff incorporates by reference as if fully set forth herein the allegations 

contained in the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint. 

56. The statement on Exhibit B that Plaintiff can avoid being reported to the three 

national credit bureaus only in Plaintiff pays within forty days is confusing to the unsophisticated 

consumer. 

57. Pendrick, through its former collector NCC, had already informed Plaintiff that 

her account would be reported to consumer reporting agencies. 

58. Virtuoso’s letter tells the consumer that the same account will be reported twice to 

the same consumer reporting agencies. The unsophisticated consumer would be confused as to 

how the same account could be reported twice, and would believe that such reporting would 

harm her credit. 

59. Defendants violated 15 U.S.C. §§ 1692e, 1692e(10) and 1692g. 

CLASS ALLEGATIONS 

60. Plaintiff brings this action on behalf of a Class, consisting of (a) all natural 

persons in the State of Wisconsin (b) who were sent a collection letter in the form represented by 

Exhibit B to the complaint in this action, (c) between November 1, 2015 and November 1, 2016, 

inclusive, (d) seeking to collect a debt allegedly owed to Pendrick Capital Partners, LLC (e) 

which debt was incurred for personal, family or household purposes, and (f) who were also sent a 

collection letter in the form represented by Exhibit A to the complaint in this action, and (g) 

neither letter was returned by the postal service. 
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61. The Class is so numerous that joinder is impracticable. On information and belief, 

there are more than 50 members of the Class. 

62. There are questions of law and fact common to the members of the class, which 

common questions predominate over any questions that affect only individual class members.  

The predominant common question is whether the Defendants complied with 15 U.S.C. § 1692e, 

1692e(10), and 1692g. 

63. Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the Class members.  All are based on 

the same factual and legal theories. 

64. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent the interests of the Class members. 

Plaintiff has retained counsel experienced in consumer credit and debt collection abuse cases. 

65. A class action is superior to other alternative methods of adjudicating this dispute.   

Individual cases are not economically feasible. 

JURY DEMAND 

66. Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff requests that the Court enter judgment in favor of Plaintiff and 

the Class and against Defendants for: 

(a) actual damages; 

(b) statutory damages;   

(c) attorneys’ fees, litigation expenses and costs of suit; and 

(d) such other or further relief as the Court deems proper. 

Dated:  November 1, 2016 
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  ADEMI & O’REILLY, LLP 
 
  By: /S/ John D. Blythin   
  Shpetim Ademi (SBN 1026973) 
  John D. Blythin (SBN 1046105) 
  Mark A. Eldridge (SBN 1089944) 
  Denise L. Morris (SBN 1097911) 
  3620 East Layton Avenue 
  Cudahy, WI 53110 
  (414) 482-8000 
  (414) 482-8001 (fax) 
  sademi@ademilaw.com 
  jblythin@ademilaw.com 
  meldridge@ademilaw.com 
  dmorris@ademilaw.com 
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-N ationwi e
ONNACCO I Credit IIIIWPO Box 1022 571-316-2508 DC Metro Area
Wixom MI 48393-1022 COrpOrat1 Oil

855-974-6140 Outside Metro
ADDRESS SERVICE REQUESTED

Date Total Bal Agit Enclosed

4110, 2015 $337.00

M488-92 565434138

iliIiiiiIuIiiIIutiIIiliiiiIIiIlIuIiiitIiulIlIiIliiIulIliiiiuuII
Kimberly Morgan N C C
1032 E Knapp St PO Box 9156
Milwaukee WI 53202-3841 Alexandria VA 22304-0156

***Detach Upper Polton And Retain WO Payment.'"

Your Account With: Infinity Healthcare Physicians Sc
Reference Number:
Account Number: 488 AC.A.

INTERNArIONAL

Total Due: $337.00
and Collcolon Prof,sinnth

Your account tbr emergency room medical services rendered to you on 07/16/14 at Columbia St Mary's Milwaukee has been
acquired by Pendrick Capital Partners. LLC, and turned over to Nationwide Credit Corporation for collection of this debt. This
account is only for services performed by the Emergency Room Physician. These charges are not from the Hospital.
To make a payment online, please ao to http://www.paynccarm.com/.
Your access code is:

If this account is not resolved within 45 days, we will report the account to Equifax, Experian, and Trans Union credit
reporting agencies.
Unless you notify this office within 30 days after receiving this notice that you dispute the validity of this debt or any portion
thereof, this office will assume this debt is valid. If you notify this office in writing within 30 days after receiving this notice
that you dispute the validity of this debt or any portion thereof, this office will obtain verification of the debt or obtain a copy
of a judgment and mail you a copy of such judgment or verification. If you contact this office in writing within 30 days after
receiving this notice, this office will provide you with the name and address of the original creditor, if different from the
current creditor.

This is an attempt to collect a debt from a collector. Any information obtained will be used for that purpose.

This collection agency is licensed by the Division of Banking in the Wisconsin Department of Financial Institutions,
www.wdfi.org.

1140NNACC01092

N C C. 5503 Cherokee Ave Alexandria VA 22312-2307 57 I-316-2508 855-974-6140
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Our client, Pendrick Capital Partners, LLC ("Pendrick CP"), has asked us to provide you with the information contained
below.

This notice is being provided to you in compliance with the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Privacy Act.

This notice has not reflection or bearing upon the status of your account. For example, if your account has been settled, the
balance has been paid, the balance has been disputed, or if you have filed for bankruptcy protection, the status of your account

shall not change as a result of this notice.

The privacy and security of your personal information is important to Pendrick CP, Pendrick CP does not share information
about you with anyone, except as permitted by law. This notice will inform you about Pendrick CP's policies and procedures
concerning the personal information about you that Pendrick CP obtains, maintains and discloses in connection with the
account(s) of your that Pendrick CP owns. Pendrick CP collections nonpublic information about you that is obtained from one

or more of the following sources.

I. Information Pendrick CP received from companies that sold Pendrick CP your account(s)
2. Information about your transactions with Pendrick CP's affiliates; and

3. Information from skip tracing companies and/or consumer reporting agencies

INFORMATION PENDRICK CP MAY SHARE WITH PENDRICK CP'S AFFILIATES Pendrick CP may share
identification (such as name and address) information about Pendrick CP's transactions and experiences with you (such as

payment history) and information that does not identify you, with Pendrick CP's affiliates. By sharing this information,
Pendrick CP is better able to service your account(s).

INFORMATION PENDRICK CP MAY SHARE WITH NONAFFILIATED COMPANIES Pendrick CP shares all of the
information Pendrick CP collects about you, as described above, with non affiliated companies, as permitted by law, to assist
in the servicing of your account(s). For example, Pendrick CP:

I. May share information about you with companies that Pendrick CP uses to perform account servicing
functions to manage and maintain your account and to process transaction you have authorized; and

2. May report information about you to consumer reporting agencies, government agencies in response
to a subpoena, or others in connection with investigations.

Because Pendrick CP respects your privacy, Pendrick CP does not sell, trade or otherwise disclose your identity or any other
personal information about you to third parties for their marketing purposes. Pendrick CP does not share collected information
about customers or former customers with third parties for any other purpose, except as permitted by applicable privacy law.
For example, collected information may be shared in certain circumstances (A) with third parties, to service or enforce
accounts, (B) with credit reporting agencies, and (C) with laNN enforcement officials, to protect against fraud or other crimes.

CONFIDENTIALITY AND SECURITY OF YOUR ACCOUNT(S) Pendrick CP restricts access to nonpublic personal
information about you to only those employees who need to know such information, and third party service providers who
provide support services to Pendrick CP, Pendrick CP maintains physical, electronic and procedural safeguards to protect your
personal information, If Peridrick CP uses other companies to provide services for Pendrick CP, Pendrick CP requires them to

keep the information Pendrick CP shares with them safe and secure and Pendrick CP does not allow them to use or share
information for any purpose other than the job they are hired to do.

Special Notice Regarding Collected Information Subject to the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act. This Privacy Notice
is being sent to you by Pendrick CP in accordance with federal privacy law, and it describes our privacy practices generally.
However, please be assured that collected information that is received or used for purposes of collecting a debt subject to the
Fair Debt Collection Practices Act is communicated only in accordance with that Act.

FURTHER INFORMATION: For additional information concerning Pendrick CP's privacy policy, you may write to Pendrick
CP at: Pendrick Capital Partners, LLC, Attn: Customer Service, 79 Warren Street Suite 2C, Glens Falls, NY 12801.

N C C• 5503 Cherokee Ave Alexandria VA 22312-2307 571-316-2508 855-974-6140
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virivio‘4O- 4500 Cherry CrPlease Mail All Correspondence To:

eek Drive South, Suite 300 Glendale CO 80246-1531

-'01.tri, my gm! p
888-982-6717

11/03/2015

Creditor: PENDRICK CAPITAL PARTNERS Your Account No.: 303
Principal Balance: $337.00 Client Ref
Balance: $337.00

Morgan, Kimberly Morgan, Kimberly,

Your Infinity Healthcare Phys, SC. account has been purchased by PENDRICK CAPITAL PARTNERS. All inquiries regarding
this account should be made to Virtuoso Sourcing Group. If in 40 days following receipt of this notice and the expiration of the
validation period below, the account remains unresolved it will be reported to the three national credit reporting agencies.

Unless you notify this office within 30 days after receiving this notice that you dispute the validity of this debt or any portion
thereof, this office will assume this debt is valid. If you notify this office in writing within 30 days from receiving this notice, this
office will: obtain verification of the debt or obtain a copy of a judgment and mail you a copy of such judgment or verification. If
you request this office in writing within 30 days after receiving this notice, this office will provide you with the name and address
of the original creditor, if different from the current creditor.

This is an attempt to collect a debt and any information obtained will be used for that purpose. This communication is from a

debt collector.

Visit our web site https://virtuososourcing.123fastpay.com/
Make a payment, set up a payment plan, report important information regarding your account.

IMPORTANT: Please have this reference number handy when calling our officeM 303
IGLVIRT0100114

**"PLEASE DETACH AND ENCLOSE THE LOWER PORTION WITH YOUR PAYMENT IN THE ENVELOPE PROVIDED***

Creditor: PENDRICK CAPITAL PARTNERS
Amount Due: 337.00GLVIRT01

PO Box 1022 Account No.: 303

Wixom MI 48393-1022 Client Ref ft:

FORWARD SERVICE REQUESTED
Amount Enclosed

0000000MMA-Rfatio'•, cli4400ffittIAM61-6 Page 2 of 3 Document 1-2

SEND ONLY PAYMENTS TO THIS ADDRESS:
11/03/2015

303
uoso Sourcing Group, LLC

PO Box 8546
724565775 Omaha NE 68108-0546

PERSONAL & CONFIDENTIAL
Morgan, Kimberly
1032 E Knapp St _dal IF YOU WISH TO PAY BY VISA OR MASTERCARD,
Milwaukee WI 53202-3841 m

ntePLEASE CALL OUR OFFICE OR VISIT OUR WEBSITE
ll AT https://virtuososourcing.123fastpay.com/



Privacy Notice
This notice is being forwarded to you in compliance with the requirements of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Privacy Act, 15 U.S.C. sec. 6801 et seq.
It has no reflection or bearing upon the status of your account.

Information We May Collect
Pendrick Capita! Partners, LLC, collects non-public personal information about you that is obtained from one or more of the following sources:

1. Information we received from companies that sold us your account (for example, applications and other related forms);
2. Information about your transactions with us, our affiliates, or others; and
3. Information we received from a consumer-reporting agency.

Information We May Share With Our Affiliates
The Account Owners may share identification information (such as name and address), information about our transactions and experiences
with you (such as payment history), and information that does not identify you, with companies related to us by common control or ownership
("affiliates"). By sharing this information, we are better able to service your accounts,

Information We May Share With Nonaffiliated Companies
The Account Owners may share all of the information we collect about you, as described above, with nonaffiliated companies, as permitted by
law. For example:

We may share information about you with companies that we use to perform account-servicing functions to manage
and maintain your account and to process transactions that you have authorized; and

6 We may report information about you to consumer reporting agencies, government agencies in response to

subpoenas, or others in connection with investigations.

Confidentiality and Security of your Account
The Account Owners restrict access to nonpublic personal information about you to only those employees who need to know such information,
and third party service providers who provide support services to us. We maintain physical, electronic and procedural safeguards to protect
your personal information. If we use other companies to provide services for us, we require them to keep the information we share with them
safe and secure and we do not allow them to use or share the information for any purpose other than the job they are hired to do.

Additional Rights and Modifications
You may have other privacy protections under state or federal laws including the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act. This notice does not affect

any rights or privacy protections provided by these laws. We may amend this Privacy Notice at any time, and will inform you of changes as

required by law.

In accordance with the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (FDCPA): This is an attempt to collect a debt by a debt collector. Any information
obtained will be used for that purpose.

Vermont Residents Only: Following the law of your state, we will not disclose nonpublic personal financial information about you to

nonaffiliated third parties (other than as permitted by law) unless you authorize us to make that disclosure. Your authorization must be in

writing. If you wish to authorize us to disclose your nonpublic personal financial information to nonaffiliated third parties, you may write us at:.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the

__________ District of __________ 

)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Plaintiff

v. Civil Action No.

Defendant

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address)

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.  The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. 
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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       Eastern District of Wisconsin

 
Kimberly Morgan

16-cv-1461

Virtuoso Sourcing Group, LLC, and  
Pendrick Capital Partners, LLC

VIRTUOSO SOURCING GROUP, LLC 
4500 Cherry Creek Drive South, Suite 300 
Glendale, CO 80246 

John D. Blythin 
Ademi & O'Reilly, LLP 
3620 East Layton Avenue 
Cudahy, WI 53110 
(414) 482-8000-Telephone
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Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE

(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (l))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date) .

’ I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ; or

’ I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

’ I served the summons on (name of individual) , who is

 designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or

’ I returned the summons unexecuted because ; or

’ Other (specify):

.

My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ .

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the

__________ District of __________ 

)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Plaintiff

v. Civil Action No.

Defendant

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address)

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.  The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. 
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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       Eastern District of Wisconsin

 
Kimberly Morgan

16-cv-1461

Virtuoso Sourcing Group, LLC, and 
Pendrick Capital Partners, LLC

PENDRICK CAPITAL PARTNERS, LLC 
c/o CT CORPORATION SYSTEM  
4701 COX ROAD, SUITE 285  
GLEN ALLEN, VA 23060-0000  

John D. Blythin 
Ademi & O'Reilly, LLP 
3620 East Layton Avenue 
Cudahy, WI 53110 
(414) 482-8000-Telephone
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Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE

(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (l))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date) .

’ I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ; or

’ I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

’ I served the summons on (name of individual) , who is

 designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or

’ I returned the summons unexecuted because ; or

’ Other (specify):

.

My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ .

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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